
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

at the Council Offices, Farnborough on 
Thursday, 12th December, 2024 at 7.00 pm 

 

 
To: 
 

Cllr Halleh Koohestani (Chairman) 
Cllr Nadia Martin (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr S. Trussler (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Cllr Leola Card 

Cllr A.H. Crawford 
Cllr P.J. Cullum 

Cllr Thomas Day 
Cllr C.P. Grattan 

Cllr G.B. Lyon 
Cllr Bill O'Donovan 
Cllr M.J. Tennant 

 
Standing Deputy 
Cllr C.W. Card 
Cllr S.J. Masterson 
Cllr T.W. Mitchell 
Cllr Sarah Spall 
Cllr Jacqui Vosper 
Cllr Ivan Whitmee 
 

 

Enquiries regarding this agenda should be referred to the Administrator, Adele 
Taylor, Democratic Services, Tel. (01252) 398831, Email. 

adele.taylor@rushmoor.gov.uk. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING – (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 28th November, 2024 (copy 
attached). 
 

2. CITIZENS' ADVICE - SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT - ANNUAL REPORT – 
(Pages 7 - 34) 
 
To receive the 2023/24 Rushmoor Borough Council Service Level Agreement (SLA) 
Annual Report (copy attached) from Citizens Advice Rushmoor (CAR) Chief 
Executive Officer, Calum Stewart. Also in attendance will be the Head of Service and 
Quality, Sue Dowell and Board of Trustees Chair, Andrew Levey. 
 
Also attached for reference are the SLA for 2024/25 and a hard copy of the Citizens 
Advice Rushmoor Annual Review 2023/24.  
 
Emma Lamb, Community and Partnerships Service Manager at the Council, will be 
in attendance. 
 

3. WORK PLAN – (Pages 35 - 44) 
 
To consider the Work Plan for the 2024/25 Municipal Year (copy attached). 
 
 

MEETING REPRESENTATION 
 
Members of the public may ask to speak at the meeting on any of the items on the 
agenda by writing to the Committee Administrator at the Council Offices, 
Farnborough by 5.00 pm two working days prior to the meeting. 
 
Applications for items to be considered for the next meeting must be received in 
writing to the Committee Administrator fifteen working days prior to the meeting. 

 
 

----------- 
 
 



- 23 - 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
Meeting held on Thursday, 28th November, 2024 at the Council Chamber, Council 
Offices, Farnborough at 7.00 pm. 
 
Voting Members 

Cllr Halleh Koohestani (Chairman) 
Cllr Nadia Martin (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr S. Trussler (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Cllr Leola Card 

Cllr A.H. Crawford 
Cllr P.J. Cullum 

Cllr Thomas Day 
Cllr C.P. Grattan 

Cllr G.B. Lyon 
Cllr Bill O'Donovan 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Cllr M.J. Tennant 
 
Cllr Jacqui Vosper attended the meeting virtually as Standing Deputy. 
 

19. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
The minutes of the meetings held on 24th October, 2024 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 

20. LEADERS PRIORITIES 
 
The Committee welcomed Cllr Gareth Williams, Leader of the Council who was in 
attendance to present the proposals for a Council Delivery Plan and a programme of 
work to develop a new Council Vision and Plan. 
 
The Leader set out the Council Delivery Plan Priorities, which had been approved by 
the Cabinet on 26 November, 2024. It was noted that the new administration were 
keen to put their stamp on the Council’s activities and would be approaching this via 
a two-step process. This process allowed for the Delivery Plan to be developed 
between December 2024 and February 2025, this process would be followed but the 
development of the Council’s Vision and Plan between February 2025 and 
December 2025. 
 
The priorities, approved by the Cabinet, were as set out below; 
 

 Skills, Economy and Business – the priority would aim to help promote 
access to skills development and training, enable working with businesses to 
attract and retain jobs and promote the development of our towns to meet the 
needs of businesses and residents. 

Page 1

AGENDA ITEM No. 1



- 24 - 
 

 

 Homes for All: Quality Living, Affordable Housing – the priority was aimed 
at improving social housing performance, would allow for intervention to 
improve the quality of private sector rented accommodation, provide quality 
temporary accommodation, raise awareness of the allocation of social 
housing, help to progress a new Local Plan and enable the regeneration of 
Council owned brownfield land. 

 

 Community and Wellbeing: Active Lives, Healthier and Stronger 
Communities – the priority was aimed at ensuring all residents had access to 
opportunities for physical exercise through a new leisure centre in 
Farnborough, enabled a programme of community and cultural activities, 
addressed health inequalities and allowed for partner working to improve 
access to mental health support. 

 

 Pride in Place: Clean, Safe and Vibrant Neighbourhoods – the priority was 
aimed at providing cleaner streets through fly tipping initiatives, the work of 
the Cabinet Pride of Place Champion and initiatives with partners to address 
long term issues of anti-social behaviour (ASB). 

 

 Vision for the Future and Financial Sustainability – the priority aimed to 
agree a collective vision for the Borough, create an outcome led plan to 
deliver the vision, implement processes and monitoring to ensure 
accountability, achieve financial sustainability and embed a culture of 
continuous improvement.  
 

The Committee made a number of queries relating to the Plan, these included: 
 

 Homes for All – it was noted that some guidance had now been received 
from central Government, which would help with the development of the new 
Local Plan. It was proposed that evidence gathering would commence in 
2025.  
 
In response to a question on population density, it was noted that homes were 
needed for residents already living in the Borough in overcrowded 
accommodation, the needs of the residents needed to be considered when 
developing the Local Plan.  
 
In response to a query regarding the improvement of private sector rented 
housing, it was noted that a Private Registration Scheme was being assessed 
for its viability and work was underway to determine the best way forward. 
 
Registered Providers – in response to a query regarding how the work of 
Registered Providers was monitored, it was noted that consideration was 
being given to a channel that would allow for more active engagement on a 
regular basis which would run alongside the current Registered Providers 
Task and Finish Group (RPT&F). However, it was important to ensure that the 
work of the new channel and the RPT&F did not crossover. 
 

Page 2



- 25 - 
 

During a discussion regarding the use of brownfield sites for development to 
achieve the Local Plan requirement of 600 new homes per year, a list on 
brownfield sites for resident development was requested.  
 
ACTION  

What  Whom  By When  

Follow up on the recommendations from 
the Committee following the annual 
review report of the Registered Providers 
Task and Finish Group in June 2024.  
 

The Leader January 
2025 

To provide a list of brownfield sites for 
residential development across the 
borough. 

Planning 
Team – 
Katie 
Herrington 

December 
2024 

 

 Pride of Place – it was expressed that, as drafted, the priority for Pride of 
Place seemed negative and more emphasis could be put on the positive 
activities which took place in the Borough and activities around community 
cohesion.  
 
When questioned on the safety element of the priority, the Leader advised 
that work was underway to understand the issues around ASB, in particular in 
the town centres, and measures were being taken to tackle the causes. 
 
In regard to the “walk your waste” initiative (formally Mega Skips), it was noted 
that the trial would be evaluated, once completed, to assess it performance. 
 
In was asked if a budget had been allocated to support the role of the Pride of 
Place Champion. In response, it was advised that the role had been 
established to encourage community engagement and fundraising initiatives 
so would therefore cost very little financially. 
 
In response to a query regarding concern over the look and feel of the 
Borough’s streets, it was noted that the SERCO contract was currently being 
considered and this process would include the longer term service 
requirements of the Council, part of which would incorporate the level of street 
cleansing.  

 

 Vision for the Future and Financial Sustainability -  
 
The Committee considered the residents survey and how it could be made 
simpler to enable translation to encourage wider engagement. It was noted 
that engagement had been made with schools and community groups to 
encourage response rates and officers had utilised the numbers of attendees 
at events, such as Victoria day, to gather responses from the wider 
community. In response to a query regarding how residents feedback was 
used to inform the Plan, the Committee were referred to para 3.3 of Report 
No. ACE2416, which set out the important issues identified by residents. 
 

Page 3



- 26 - 
 

The Leader advised on the differences between the new Plan and the existing 
Plan. The new Plan included a wider scope on the Skills, Economy and 
Business priority, a stronger line and crackdown on private landlords as part 
of the Homes for All priority and an increase in CCTV and a  crackdown on 
ASB as part of the Pride in Place priority. 
 
In response to a query regarding the cost of the new plan and whether it was 
coming in at cost neutral, it was advised that the plan was not yet fully costed, 
but outline costs had been identified and it was advised that there would be a 
small uplift in cost. The aim was to work with partners to facilitate some of the 
activity to reduce costs, to allow the Council to provide a low cost co-
ordination role. 
 
In response to a query regarding the reputation of the Council and how it 
would be protected, the Leader advised that the reputation would be protected 
by presenting a grounded plan that offered sustainability and acknowledged 
the current financial position. 
 
With regard to the Environmental Impact Assessments that were agreed at 
the Council meeting on 7 November, 2024 it was asked if the cost of these 
would become a financial burden, it was noted that they would be appropriate 
to the level of investments being made.  
 
In relation to the Climate Change Action Plan refresh, it was noted that the 
refresh of the Plan could incorporate viability assessments and potentially 
look at influencing the wider areas carbon footprint, not just the Council’s. The 
Policy and Project Advisory Board had considered proposals for the refresh at 
its meeting on 19 November 2024. 

 

 Skills, Economy and Business – in response to a query regarding the 
breadth of skills training to be encouraged, it was noted that a variety of skills 
would be encouraged from technical skills to creative arts. 

 
It was noted that any further questions for the Leader of the Council on this matter 
should be shared with the administrator to be collated for response. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Leader for his contribution. 
 

21. RISK REGISTER 
 
The Committee welcomed Roger Sanders, Risk, Performance and Procurement 
Service Manager and Rachel Barker, Assistant Chief Executive who were in 
attendance, with the Leader of the Council, to provide a presentation on the Risk 
Management Policy and Risk Register. 
 
The Committee noted a summary timeline, since 2018/19, on how the management 
of risk had developed. In 2024 the Council underwent a Corporate Peer Challenge, 
the outcomes of which included recommendations relating to governance and clarity 
of Members’ roles and responsibilities. In the Autumn of 2024, officers undertook a 
review and update of the risk management policy, which took account of emerging 

Page 4



- 27 - 
 

Delivery Plan priorities, feedback from the Corporate Peer Challenge and 
recommendations from an internal audit. Following engagement on the revised 
policy with the Committee and other Members, it was proposed that the Cabinet 
would consider it at its meeting in January 2025. 
 
The two levels of risk registered were noted, these include a Corporate Risk Register 
and individual Service Risk Registers. Within the Corporate Risk Register sat the 
Strategic Risks, Standing Corporate Risks and escalated Service Risks. The 
Committee were apprised of the key risks, these included: 
 

 Strategic Risks  - including economic conditions, poor health outcomes and 
the financial sustainability of public sector bodies 

 Standing Corporate Risks – including data breaches, insufficient funding to 
proceed with projects and financial sustainability  

 Escalated Service Risks – including failure to provide temporary 
accommodation and the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP absorption into 
Hampshire County Council (HCC)  

 
The upcoming changes to the reviewed Policy were set out, these included, 
processes to map opportunities and threats, formalisation of the process for quarterly 
reporting, development of trend monitoring, development arrangements to identify 
risks that were an issue and development of a strategic level risk appetite in line with 
the Council Plan. 
 
During discussions the Committee queried who was responsible for risk in the 
organisation, it was noted that the revised Policy would make this clearer. However, 
the Cabinet played a central role in the monitoring of risk and Portfolio Holders were 
tasked with discussing risk and mitigation regularly within their areas of 
responsibility. 
 
In response to a query relating to identifying gaps in the Council’s Risk Registers, it 
was noted that services had a responsibility to incorporate any new legislation within 
their Service Risk Registers as appropriate. More generally cross references were 
carried out against global reporting and horizon scanning. 
 
With regard to the level of risk that was considered acceptable, it was advised that 
currently risk appetite was determined line by line within each service area, these are 
then considered by the Executive Leadership Team (ELT) and reported to Cabinet to 
agree the level of appetite. The development of a Strategic Risk Appetite would 
provide an overall view on risk going forward assisting the process.  
 
A request was made for Member training on cyber security, this would be pulled 
together and provided on an ongoing basis. It was also noted that the Cabinet Office 
provide some useful information to elected Members.  
 
In response to a query on how often risk was looked at by senior officers and 
Portfolio Holders, it was reported that the full Corporate Risk Register was reviewed 
by the ELT once a quarter and Portfolio Holders would meet with Executive Heads of 
Service and Service Managers to discuss risk on a monthly basis. Officers 

Page 5



- 28 - 
 

considered risk routinely as part of business as usual. Any emerging risks would be 
identified and brought to the attention of the ELT as appropriate.  
 
In the case of a risk presenting that could have a larger impact than would be 
considered possible, the Council would ensure that a reasonable worse case 
scenario was applied. In the case of the Coronavirus pandemic, the Council had flu 
pandemic plans in place that were adapted to meet the needs of the local authority. 
 
The Committee ENDORSED the approach to the Risk Management Policy and the 
Risk Register. 
 
The Chairman thanked Ms Barker and Mr Sanders for the presentation. 
 

22. WORK PLAN 
 
The Committee noted the current Work Plan and the items for the meeting on 12 
December, which included the Citizens’ Advice Service Level Agreement Annual 
Report. 
 
The meeting closed at 8.57 pm. 
 
 
  

CLLR HALLEH KOOHESTANI (CHAIRMAN) 
 
 
 
 
 

------------ 

Page 6



 
 

 1 

RUSHMOOR COMMUNITY ADVICE SERVICE 
ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24 

 
A Service Level Agreement (SLA) between Rushmoor Borough Council and Citizens Advice 
Rushmoor was agreed on, amongst others, the following overarching terms:   
 
 

• Duration: 1 Year (1st April 2023 – 31st March 2024) 
• Profile: Citizens Advice Rushmoor will provide a free, impartial and independent service 

of generalist advice, information, support and representation in a confidential manner to 
vulnerable people in need of help and support who reside in Rushmoor 

• Funding: £189,960.10 (in the form of a grant exclusive of VAT) 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Citizens Advice Rushmoor has had a simple but compelling mission over the last 84 years – to 
use the power of good advice to help people solve their problems, and drive the change needed 
to tackle the underlying causes of those problems. Last year was, however, one of the more 
challenging we’ve faced as a charity. Not ourselves immune from the cost-of-living crisis, already 
so acutely impacting our clients, we faced a significant financial shortfall that led to the painful 
decision to restructure the service, contributed to in part by two years of consecutive cuts to our 
grant from Rushmoor Borough Council (10% in 2022/23 and a further 5% in 2023/24).  
 
Despite the loss of valued people and experience through redundancy, and an increasingly 
difficult operating environment, we have continued to deliver for those who need us most. This 
is a testament to the dedication and commitment of our team of staff and volunteers. However, 
meeting local demand with the resources available continues to be a challenge. In addition, 
client cases are becoming more complex and more often presenting at crisis point. This requires 
us to continually review our service model to ensure it remains fit for purpose. 
 
This report illustrates the incredible impact and value of the Rushmoor Community Advice 
Service our team delivers, with over 5,000 clients supported with almost 16,000 issues as a 
direct result of that investment over the last year. This project was just one of our many advice 
projects that worked with 10,706 people on 43,046 issues during 2023/24.  
 
For every £1 invested in Citizens Advice Rushmoor, we generated at least:  
 

• £1.67 in fiscal savings to government; 
• £24.22 in wider economic and social benefits  
• £7.10 in value to our clients; 

 
Last year, though income gained by benefits awarded, debts written off, and consumer problems 
resolved, our team achieved staggering client outcomes of £7,791,672. A fuller set of figures 
relating to our services’ impact and value can be found at Appendix 1.  
 
50 volunteers supporting all aspects of our service, provided on average 270 hours per week, 
with a combined value of £363,877 for 2023/24.  
  

Page 7

AGENDA ITEM No. 2



 
 

 2 

MONITORING REQUIREMENTS: 
 

Key Requirements Outputs/Supporting Evidence 
Quarterly statistics and an 
update on current trends, 
including main issues, 
outcomes, channels, client 
demographics etc.  
 

Key Statistics, organisational KPIs, and projects overview shared 
with Council as part of quarterly SLA monitoring meetings.  
 
See Appendix 2 for full breakdown.  
 

Ward breakdown of new 
issues and clients 

Quarterly ward breakdowns are published online and on social 
media, as well as shared directly with councillors by email and 
with physical copies placed in pigeonholes. 
 
See Appendix 3 for a ward-by-ward data overview. 
 

Outcomes  
1. Provide a free, impartial 
and independent service of 
advice, information, 
support and in a 
confidential manner to 
people in need of help and 
support who reside or 
work in Rushmoor. 
 

Citizens Advice Rushmoor exists to help people in Rushmoor face 
fewer problems – its overarching aim remains to ensure our 
services remain accessible, relevant, and sustainable for everyone 
who needs them, with clients and our community at the heart of 
all we do. Our services are designed to reflect the needs and 
profile of our community and are based on a breadth and depth 
of local knowledge, data analysis, and consultations, with internal 
and external input from funders, stakeholders, trustees, 
operational staff and volunteers across the organisation. This 
includes the continued impact of the cost-of-living crisis on the 
most marginalised, alongside a landscape of increasing demand 
against reducing resources, which mean we must carefully plan 
how we can continue to deliver services that meet client needs.  
 
Services are delivered by email, webchat, phone, and face-to-face 
from our two offices in Farnborough and Aldershot, as well as at 
outreach locations across our area, to ensure anyone can access 
them. All services are available five days per week, with generalist 
drop-in support from 9:30am to 12:30pm across our two offices. 
our Adviceline helpline open 9am-4pm Monday to Friday. A 
specialist Nepali drop-in service is also available at our Aldershot 
office every Wednesday 9:30am-12:30pm.  
 
Support ranges from signposting and brief one-off interventions 
to in-depth casework, with services always tailored to meet 
individual needs. A team of approx. 50 volunteers deliver the vast 
majority of our services, from reception and administration 
through to advisers and caseworkers. They are supported by a 
small team of supervisors and senior managers.   
 

Page 8



 
 

 3 

See case studies at Appendix 4. 
 

2. Provide focused 
partnership activity 
targeting the most 
vulnerable residents. 
 

As a constant presence in the face of change, we have a unique 
insight into the challenges our community face and work in 
partnership with councils like RBC and other key agencies to make 
sure we meet key local needs. CAR recognises the significant 
diversity of our local population, as well as the key areas of 
deprivation.  
 
Our Cost of Living in Rushmoor report, launched in early 2023, set 
out an action plan that we used across the year to focus our 
efforts with partners to reach the needs of the most marginalised 
and underrepresented in our community. 
 
As part of these efforts during 2023/24, we have:  
 

• Nepali Language drop-in re-started at Aldershot offices on 
21st February (Wednesdays 10am-12:30pm). 10-12 clients 
dealt with each week so far, with lots of interest from 
partners to join us in accessing to this hard-to-reach 
group. Manned by both paid staff and volunteers. Great 
feedback so far from clients that this has re-started.  
 

• As part of Government's Household Support Fund, worked 
with other CA offices and HCC to distribute £33,810 in 
energy vouchers to c230 Rushmoor households in or at 
risk of fuel poverty between October 2023 and March 
2024. This is in additional to several thousand pounds of 
support to purchase white goods (via our local British 
Heart Foundation) and undertake boiler repairs, as well 
as provide emergency food and fuel vouchers. Again, 
these were successful proactive applications by us to the 
HSF. This additional funding has supported c100 further 
households.  

 
• Increased efforts to engage local housing associations - 

with meetings and data sharing agreements secured with 
VIVID, SSJ, and Mears Group to support their tenants, 
often with complex issues. £9,000 secured from HSF to 
support Clayton Court residents who, due to energy 
supply arrangements, were unable to access existing 
energy grants. 45 households also supported with an 
electric heater, voucher for bedding, and £150 food 
voucher (c£200 support per household). 

 

Page 9

https://citizensadvicerushmoor.org.uk/2023/02/cost-of-living-in-rushmoor-2022-23-full-report/


 
 

 4 

• Partnership with the national Fuel Bank Foundation, 
providing energy vouchers to those on pre-payment 
meters and in fuel crisis (i.e. about to run out, or have 
already run out of credit).  
 

• Continued weekly outreach at the Grub Hub. Have used 
success of this model in reaching more marginalised 
clients to secure additional funding from The Trussell 
Trust for a part-time foodbank adviser based across the 
Farnborough Foodbank sites at Christ Church, 
Farnborough and Kite Family Hub, Mytchett. This is due to 
start imminently. 
 

• Data showed Cherrywood Ward to have the highest 
prevalence of debt issues of all wards in Rushmoor. 
Funding secured from PEBL to undertake focused debt 
advice work with Prospect Estate residents between 
March 2024 and January 2025.  

 
See case studies at Appendix 4.  
 

3. Improve the 
sustainability of services 
for clients. 
 

Delivery of our strategy is supported by sound governance, risk 
and compliance principles. Benchmarking of best practice and 
quality standards is undertaken against the external Charity 
Governance Code and the internal Citizens Advice Leadership Self 
Assessment process. Risks are identified and managed via a Risk 
Register which is managed by our Finance & Risk Committee and 
reviewed regularly by the full Trustee Board. Trustees have 
received training in risk management principles. Compliance is 
monitored against legal and regulatory requirements, including 
the Charity Commission, Companies House, FCA, Data Protection 
regulations; and against the internal Citizens Advice membership 
agreement and policies. 
 
As a result of significant increases in costs, as well as reductions 
and freezes in income, we forecasted a sizeable deficit at the 
beginning of the 2023/24 financial year, well in excess of 
£100,000; a large proportion of our overall budget. However, 
through a programme of cost savings, redundancy, and further 
income generation efforts, we have been able to almost eliminate 
the deficit and set a balanced budget for the forthcoming year 
2024/25. These changes have enhanced our sustainability, whilst 
improving our operational efficiency.  
 
Given the continued fragility of much of our funding, including the 
RBC grant, we are building further cost savings and income 

Page 10



 
 

 5 

generation into our strategic priorities. This remains a continued 
focus for the organisation moving forward to ensure the future 
sustainability of our services for clients.   
 
In addition, we have also:  
 

• Implemented a new cohort model of volunteer 
recruitment and training, with the first group having just 
completed their training at the end of March 2024. Two 
further cohorts are planned for later this year.  

 
• ‘Advice First Aid’ is being further rolled out to local 

partners and other community organisations, including 
council officers. A dedicated session for councillors is 
currently under discussion for after the elections. This 
training further bolsters the skills of non-CA community 
champions, as well as helping us to manage the 
increasing need for advice services locally.  
 

• Increased efforts to enable clients to ‘self-serve’, including 
additional training for our ‘Welcome Team’ in each office, 
as well as the introduction of public access computers in 
both offices for use during opening hours. 
 

• A preventative advice workstream, focused on financial 
capability, is also being developed.  
 

See Appendix 5 for a selection of client/partner feedback. 
 

4. Increased impact 
through collaboration 
across the sector and with 
public sector partners, 
including health. 
 

Identifying opportunities to work more closely with partners, and 
with colleagues across the Citizens Advice network, we are 
continually striving to improve our services to clients.  
 
This work during 2023/24 includes: 
 

• Continued helping lead the cost of living/economic 
hardship stream of work as part of the Rushmoor 
Supporting Communities Group, and as an active partner 
within the Aldershot Health Inequalities Group.  

 
• Data-led pilot project, ‘Safe & Warm’, developed in 

collaboration with NHS Frimley to target fuel poverty 
advice and financial support at Rushmoor residents with 
severe respiratory ill-health, in poorly insulated homes, 
and living in areas of deprivation.   
 

Page 11



 
 

 6 

• PEBL Energy Project, funded by SGN, supported over 320 
households in and around the Prospect Estate with 
energy and energy efficiency advice between Q2-Q4. This 
has been extended for a year with the aim of supporting a 
further 500 households during 2024/25.  
 

• CAR’s specialist Nepali Domestic & Sexual Abuse Support 
Service – the only one of its kind in the UK – continues to 
be funded by the OPCC for Hampshire & IOW and the 
Armed Forces Covenant Fund Trust. It is regarded as an 
example of best practice, featured in the Ministry of 
Defence’s Domestic Abuse Action Plan 2024-29. 
 

• Working with VIVD Homes’ Tenancy Sustainment team to 
support tenants with complex debt issues, such as with 
Debt Relief Order and bankruptcy solutions.  
 

• Entering our 10th year providing the national Pension 
Wise service, supporting people across the South East 
region with free and impartial guidance on their pension 
choices – one of only 16 centres nationally doing so on 
behalf of the Money and Pensions Service. 
 

• CAR will shortly be supporting delivery of the 
Government’s DWP new initiative, ‘Work Wise’. This project 
is expected to start in May and its aim is to ensure adults 
with mental or physical health conditions and/or 
disabilities, including learning disabilities and 
neurodivergence, receive the health and wellbeing 
benefits of accessing and maintaining competitive 
employment for the longer term. As part of the project, we 
will be delivering benefits, financial and holistic advice, 
whilst other partners will be providing work support. 
 

• Existing work with local charity, The Brain Tumour 
Charity, continues. This project involves us delivering a 
national telephone clinic on behalf of the charity to 
individual and families affected by brain tumours.  
 

• Funding from NHS Frimley and Broadhurst continues to 
support our longstanding specialist advice service for 
residents with severe mental ill-health, unable to access 
our generalist advice service. This project continues to 
grow, supporting 500 clients during 2023/24. Moving 
forward, we are exploring opportunities to expand the 

Page 12

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65ba6fffc75d300012ca100c/14.354_MOD_DA_Action_Plan_v8.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65ba6fffc75d300012ca100c/14.354_MOD_DA_Action_Plan_v8.pdf


 
 

 7 

project with money from the NHS Frimley Innovation Fund 
to support TalkPlus clients on a pilot basis.  
 

• A vast array of community activities organised by 
partners attended, including RBC events such as Victoria 
Day, Eco Fair, Independence Day of Ukraine, Rushmoor 
Youth Influence and Faith Leaders’ Forum, local libraries’ 
‘Warm & Welcome’ events, peer support groups from RHL, 
Mind, and The Princess Royal Trust for Carers, and the 
Shots Foundation’s Veterans’ Hub.  
 

See case studies at Appendix 4.  
 

 
 
 

Calum Stewart 
Interim Chief Officer 

 
May 2024 

 
 

 

  

Page 13



 
 

 8 

APPENDIX 1 – VALUE AND IMPACT 
 
 
 

  

 

 

 

Page 14



 
 

 9 

APPENDIX 2 – KEY STATISTICS 2023/24  

 

Page 15



 
 

 10 

APPENDIX 3 – WARD BREAKDOWN 
 

  

Page 16



 
 

 11 

APPENDIX 4 – CASE STUDIES 
 
CASE STUDY 1 – Community Grub Hub 
As part of our significant partnership with one of our largest local community pantries, the 
Community Grub Hub, we’ve supporting their ambition for a wider “wraparound” service for 
their 200 or more weekly customers by having one of our advisers stationed there every week to 
provide advice and information to some of the most marginalised in our community. 
 
Here’s an extract from what a typical day looks like for our adviser: 
 
• 10:07am – Helped get a customer reconnected after his electricity supply had been cut off 

five days earlier due to failure to pay outstanding bills. Having just been made redundant, we 
arranged a follow up appointment to provide more detailed advice. 

• 10:52am – Spoke with a customer worried about her son, who is struggling with addition 
issues, and signposted to services that may be able to support him. 

• 11:35am – Having had their claim for Personal Independence Payment (PIP) rejected, we 
walked a client through the process to respond; encouraging them to get in touch if they 
need further support. 

• 12:12pm – Homeless and now sofa surfing with friends, we helped a customer access an 
urgent advice appointment for help with housing and benefits. 

• 1:45pm – Assessed what support was available for a family of Ukrainian refugees that had 
recently fled the war, and had been adjusting to life in the UK. 

• 2:03pm – Offered some information to a new Mum unaware of support she was eligible for 
under the NHS’ Healthy Start scheme – and how she could apply. 

• 2:42pm – Applied for a Household Support Fund energy grant on the customer’s behalf, 
having seen them several weeks earlier to assess their eligibility. He said he’d been putting 
the energy advice into practice and his bill for the last month was significantly lower. 

• 3:25pm – Reassured a customer anxious about her upcoming appointment with us to begin 
the process of tackling some of her longstanding debts. 

 
CASE STUDY 2 – Amy 
Amy came to see us because she was struggling financially due to her debts and her current 
housing situation. Amy and her 15-year-old son were of no fixed abode. They were sofa surfing 
with Amy's mum and stepfather in their 2-bed property. Their current living arrangements were 
also having an effect on her son who would greatly benefit from a settled home.  
 
One of Amy's debts is a Tax Credit overpayment which she is paying out of her wages as an 
Attachment of Earnings. The amount she is having to repay is affecting her ability to afford food 
for herself and her son.  When Amy first sought support from Citizens Advice Rushmoor she had 
already approached the Council for help with her housing situation. She had been placed in 
Band 3, which meant that she was unlikely to be housed quickly. Her and her son were 
considered low priority. Due to Amy struggling with her financial situation, our adviser began the 
process of supporting the client with her debts, by reviewing her current repayments and also 
considering what debt solution would be best suited her needs. 
 

Page 17



 
 

 12 

As a result of our help and support, Amy has successfully challenged the housing decision and 
has now been moved from a Band 3 to a Band 2, with her situation now being considered 
medium priority. This should mean that Amy and her son will now be matched to a suitable 
property of their own reasonably quickly. The adviser also negotiated with HMRC on Amy's 
behalf which resulted in a successfully reduction in the repayments for her Tax Credits 
overpayments by half. Having started the debt advice process with her, hopefully we’ll soon be 
able to identify a suitable option for sorting out her debts. 
 
Citizens Advice Rushmoor’s intervention has significantly helped Amy with both her housing and 
debt issues. As a result of her banding uplift Amy should now be in a far stronger position to 
secure housing for herself and her son, which will meet her son's needs for a settled home. 
Once housed, our adviser will also look to support Amy to make any benefit claims she will be 
entitled to. Amy's current financial pressures have also been significantly alleviated by the 
reduction in her repayments to HMRC. Longer term with our intervention and support Amy's 
debts will probably be written off through a Debt Relief Order. 
 
 
CASE STUDY 3 – Richard  
Richard is a single man in his early 70's who has suffered with various health issues for most of 
his life without medication. Some years ago, Richard had taken out a £20,000 bank loan while 
under section for a mental health crisis a day before a suicide attempt from within a mental 
health ward. Richard could just about afford the repayments with significant sacrifices. He had 
very low mood and continuing suicidal thoughts. He wanted to dispute liability to the debt due to 
his mental state, but had no idea how to do this given that he had made some payments already. 
The adviser supported Richard and negotiated with the bank on his behalf, arguing that Richard 
had reduced mental capacity to enter into the loan due to the circumstances.  
 
As a result of our help, the Bank offered to write off the remaining balance of £17,000. Richard 
was informed that we could support him to pursue payments made, however Richard wished to 
move forward and accept the offer. He was overjoyed with the outcome and reports that his 
health has improved significantly and that he is beginning to enjoy life again. 
 
Richard gave the following feedback, "I found that my issues were dealt with in a very empathetic 
manner. I really felt that [the adviser] was on my side and his encouragement was empowering. I 
still cannot believe the results of the success that [they] achieved for me, [they] really knew what 
to do and I felt that [their] expertise was of a professional standard." 
 
CASE STUDY 4 – Dhanvi 
Dhanvi, aged 28, entered UK under spousal visa with her 5-year-old son. They lived with her 
husband, mother-in-law, and father-in-law. She suffers from schizophrenia and is non-verbal 
when she feels overstimulated. She used to work as a carer on a part-time basis, but had to stop 
working as her husband did not want her to continue. Dhanvi disclosed that her husband was 
physically, financially, and emotionally abusive towards her. He threatened to send her back to 
Nepal if she did not behave in the way he wanted her to. He also made her beg for money. She 
disclosed the abuse to her parents who live in Nepal; they encouraged to "make her marriage 
work" and "give him another chance." Due to lack of support system, Dhanvi felt that she had no 

Page 18



 
 

 13 

other option but to stay with her abusive husband. 
 
Dhanvi’s son's behaviour at school had changed significantly as he had witnessed much of 
abuse. His teacher had referred him to Children’s Services and was referred to our specialist 
service for emotional and practical support. Our specialist Independent Domestic Violence 
Advocate (IDVA) reached out to Dhanvi and helped her explore what options she had. She was 
not aware that she would be able to receive tailored specialist support in the UK. She said she 
felt stuck and thought she had to be dependent on her husband as she came to UK under 
spousal visa. The IDVA provided information on the areas we could assist, including refuge (safe 
accommodation), benefits, acting as an interpreter, making sure she has access to counselling 
and mental/physical health support, and applications for indefinite leave to remain.  
 
She started to engage with Children’s Services after our first appointment. Dhanvi expressed her 
worry about not wanting to talk to the Council because her husband had instilled the fear in her 
by saying "the council/Children’s Services will take your son away" from you "so remain quiet". 
Although Dhanvi had no recourse to public funds, after our involvement we were able to file an 
application called a Destitution Domestic Violence Concession (DDVC) with the Home Office to 
make her eligible for public funds and refuge.  
 
Having helped Dhanvi secure a refuge space for her and her son, we could now support her to 
access benefits so she could financially support herself. Liaising with her refuge worker, we 
helped her apply for Universal Credit and Child Benefit, as well as an application to the Home 
Office for Indefinite Leave to Remain Set(DV). This application requires a vast array of supporting 
documents from all organisations that had supported her, including the refuge, Children’s 
Services, the police, mental health practitioners, her son’s school etc. The IDVA coordinated this, 
as well as her complaints to the police, whilst also securing a school space for her son and 
ongoing counselling service for both of them.  Dhanvi said: "This service has understood my 
needs and above all they have been patient with me. I am non-verbal and tend to dissociate 
regularly. I have never felt rushed by them. They have allowed me to take my own decisions, 
supported me with my mental health, and be able to do everything at my own pace.” 
 
CASE STUDY 5 – John 
John contacted us after receiving a threatening debt collection letter from his energy company. 
He lives alone and – as a pensioner with learning difficulties – struggles dealing with letters or 
making calls by himself. Having reviewed John’s letters, it was clear that he was being incorrectly 
billed – charged for the energy debts of the previous tenant. Our adviser was able to speak to 
the energy company directly and put a hold on any further action. John was also signed up to the 
Priority Services Register, owing to his vulnerabilities, helping ensure all utility companies 
provide extra support to him in future.  
 
After negotiating with the supplier, we were able to secure a write-off of the debt, and 
successfully applied for an energy voucher of £147 to cover his outstanding balance. He was also 
unaware of his entitlement to Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support, so we helped John make 
claims for both. Although previously struggling with the increasing cost of living and using the 
Community Grub Hub every week for his food essentials, our support helped increase John’s 
monthly income by almost £1,000 which significantly improved his financial position.   

Page 19



 
 

 14 

APPENDIX 5 – FEEDBACK 
 
 

 

 

Page 20



SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

 RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL 

AND  

CITIZENS ADVICE RUSHMOOR (2024/25) 

  

1. INTRODUCTION 

  

1.1. This service agreement is between Rushmoor Borough Council, (the “Council”) and 

Citizens Advice Rushmoor (“CAR”). 

1.2. This agreement shall commence on the 1st April 2024 and shall expire on 31st March 

2025. Thereafter, the agreement may be renewed at the discretion of the Council, 

subject to availability of resources, for a period of one year with suitable terms and 

conditions acceptable to both parties.  There is no requirement for CAR to re-apply 

annually for funding. 

1.3  The grant allocation for the period 1 April 2025 to 31 March 2026 will be discussed at 

the January quarterly monitoring meeting, at which time the Service Delivery 

Requirements will also be reviewed in line with the new grant offer.  

1.4.  This agreement has been designed to ensure the work is aligned to the strategic 

priorities of Rushmoor Borough Council and the objectives of the Supporting 

Communities Strategy – where the vision is to tackle inequality and deprivation. 

1.5. The purpose of this agreement is to affirm the principles behind the funding and 

operation of CAR and the Council. It will provide greater continuity and certainty of 

funding, greater clarity, and a framework for monitoring and evaluation of CAR that is 

in the interest of both parties. 

   

2. PROFILE AND FUNDING OF CAR 

 

2.1. CAR will provide a free, impartial and independent service of generalist advice, 

information, support and representation in a confidential manner to people in need of 

advice and support who reside in the Borough of Rushmoor.   

 

2.2  The Council will provide £189,960.10 for 2024/25 in the form of a grant exclusive of 

 VAT. 

 

2.3. Payment will be made on receipt of an invoice for the above amount and once an 

authorised representative of CAR has signed and returned a copy of this agreement to 

the Council. 

Page 21



2.4. The use of the funds shall be at CAR discretion so that the profile of the service set out 

in Appendix 1 is maintained and the quality standards set out in Appendix 2 are met. 

You shall inform the Council as soon as possible at the end of the Grant Agreement 

Period if you spend less than the whole Grant on the Service and you will return any 

unspent part of the Grant to the Council within 90 days from the end of the Grant 

Agreement Period. 

2.5. The funding for CAR is based on the profile of the service set out in Appendix 1. It is  

 recognised by all parties that CAR is a dynamic organisation and that changes to this 

 profile may occur over time either to improve the service, to meet newly identified 

 needs or through exceptional circumstances. Significant changes in the profile that 

 are expected to last more than one month must be mutually agreed by all parties to 

 this agreement.   Any potential conflicts of interest shall be reviewed on a regular  
 basis 

2.6. Funding for the service is made available on the understanding that CAR meets the 

essential management and quality standards set out in Appendix 2 on an 

implementation timetable agreed by the Council.   

  

3. COMMUNICATION MONITORING AND EVALUATION 

  

3.1. CAR recognises that it is receiving public funding and accepts the Council’s 

responsibility to account for these monies. 

3.2. Links with the Council will be maintained through the Service Manager for Community 

& Partnerships, who will be the first point of contact between the council and CAR.  

3.3. The services of CAR will be monitored at quarterly meetings using the performance 

indicators (PI’s) and means of assessment outlined in Appendix 3. The aim of these 

PI’s is to provide an accurate and fair view of CAR covering financial performance and 

quality of service. 

3.4. The quarterly monitoring meetings shall be attended by the Community & Residents 

 Portfolio Holder, the Service Manager for Community & Partnership and the Chief 

 Executive of CAR. Prior to the meetings, CAR will provide quarterly, statistics  
 detailing the advice issues; including a summary of the number of clients by  
 ward and a summary of clients according to ethnic origin, age, gender and disability. 

The quarterly review meetings will consider the following: 

  

(a) Changes in the profile of operations with reference to Appendix 1; 

(b) Performance against the PI’s and the quality standards set out in Appendix 2 and 

Appendix 3; 

(c) The need or possibility of service enhancements including any issues or concerns with 

CAR’s ability to effectively deliver the agreed service.  

Page 22



(d) Financial position of CAR 

Financial position of the Council. 

(e)  Any emerging issues in the relationship between both parties and within the local 

 community. 

 

3.5 On an annual basis, in April alongside the Q4 monitoring, CAR will provide a detailed 

report for the Council containing the following information:  

a) A summary of the number of advice issues broken down by subject category and age  

b) A summary of clients according to ethnic origin, age, gender, disability, and by ward. 

c) Case studies illustrating the impact of CAR support. 

d) Evidence of the value for money provided to the Council. 

e) Outline of how the CAR has used the Council grant. 

f) A summary of research or campaign issues, trends identified and reported at quarterly 

review meetings by way of national and regional/local calls for evidence. 

 

3.6  CAR will invite representatives of RBC to its Annual General Meeting and provide the 

 Council with a full copy of its Annual Report and audited accounts each year. 

3.7 CAR to attend the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee as required to              

demonstrate the use of the Council’s grant and the impact on local residents.   

3.8  RBC may appoint one councillor to attend the Trustee Board Meetings as an 
 observer. In this position, the nominated councillor will act on behalf of RBC  
 and will be permitted to attend and participate in meetings and receive all information 

 provided to members of the board. They can support or offer guidance to the Trustee 

 Board as and when required but they are not permitted to formally vote on any  
 matters(Appendix4) 
 

4. TERMINATION 
 

The Council may end this agreement if there is: 

 

4.1.  A misuse of payments made by the Council; 
 

4.2. A fraudulent contravention of statute by CAR 

4.3  A failure to provide the service of this agreement, at the level indicated, without 

notice to and without prior approval of the Council 

If one party breaks this agreement, the aggrieved party can give three months' notice in    
writing to the other party to terminate the agreement. Every effort will be made to  resolve 

Page 23



disputes amicably between the parties involved, before recourse to termination, external 
assistance or arbitration. If recourse to arbitration is necessary, the dispute will, at the option 
of the aggrieved party, be referred to a single arbitrator acceptable to all parties. The 
decision will be binding on all parties.  The Chairman of the Institute of Arbitration shall 
appoint the arbitrator on agreement by the parties or in default of agreement. 
 
  
 
SIGNED FOR RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
  
 

Signature:   
 
  
 
Name of Signatory (Please Print)….. Rachel Barker 
  
 
Position: Assistant Chief Executive 
 
  
 
Date  26.07/2024 
 
  
 

 
SIGNED FOR CITIZENS ADVICE 
 
               

Signature:  
 
  
 
Name of Signatory (Please Print)  ANDREW LEVEY 
 

Position     CHAIR OF TRUSTEES 
 
  
 
Date      24/07/2024 

  

Page 24



                    

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
 

  

 

CITIZENS ADVICE RUSHMOOR 
 

AND 
 

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

5.0   CAR will provide information, advice and advocacy as appropriate to all clients 

seeking assistance and will utilise the experience gained to further develop the 

services within the optimum limit of resources.   

 

5.1  The service shall be confidential, independent, impartial and free of charge and shall 

be provided by telephone, personal visits to CAR offices, correspondence or any 

combination of these. 

  

5.2   CAR shall be open for telephone enquiries and appointments from Monday to Friday 

9-5 and drop ins from 9.30-12.30 across the offices.  This schedule may change 

during the life of this Service Level Agreement due to the changing needs of the 

service or due to financial limitations. The opening hours are subject to the 

availability of staff and volunteers. 

  

5.3   CAR works to the agreed aims, principles and policies of National Citizens Advice, 

which includes:- 

  

i. Comprehensive equal opportunities policies, ensuring the service is accessible to all 

sections of the community 

ii. Access to extensive information, reference materials and specialist support 

iii. Nationally agreed Performance Quality Framework and training for the effective 

delivery of advice 

  

5.4   The purpose of funding from the SLA is to enable the core service to be delivered to 

agreed levels, as specified by the Citizens Advice Performance Quality Framework 

and Membership Scheme.  The core service covering the following issues: 

Client 

iv. Welfare benefits 

v. Employment 

vi. Housing 

Page 25



vii. Family and personal 

viii. Taxes 

ix. Immigration and nationality 

x. Health 

xi. Education  

xii. Legal 

xiii. Debt 

  

5.5   CAR shall develop and maintain professional working with local agencies            

promoting partnership working between community, voluntary and statutory agencies     

located in Rushmoor and immediately adjoining local authorities and throughout Hampshire    

to the benefit of all communities in Rushmoor. The CAR will continue attending the Supporting 

Communities Working group and working with partners to deliver the objectives outlined in the 

Supporting Communities Strategy.   

 

5.6  CAR shall participate in appropriate forums and meetings with other agencies in line 

 with meeting its research and campaigns objectives, subject to staffing resource 

  

6. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

       The CAR Budget is reviewed at Board meetings. Accounts are audited annually by 

Returns are completed annually to The Charity Commission and Companies House. 

Signed, audited accounts are sent annually to Rushmoor Borough Council. 

  

  

Page 26



 

Appendix 2 

  

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

  

 CITIZENS ADVICE RUSHMOOR 

AND 

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL 

  

  

MANAGEMENT AND QUALITY STANDARDS 

  

  

PART 1 - ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS 
  

1.0  Communication with Members and Users of Services  

There will be communication and consultation with members and users regarding 

 services and in particular any changes to services funded by Rushmoor Borough  
 Council. CAR will develop methods of consultation that may include but are not  
 limited  to Questionnaires; Surveys; Personal Interviews; User representation. 

  

1.1. Statistics - Statistics on the operations of CAR will be prepared annually and form an 

integral part of the Company’s Annual Report, quarterly meetings, or more frequently 

when required. CAR will share key quarterly statistics with ward Councillors for 

information and present information to the Council as requested. 

  

1.2. Equal Opportunities - CAR has a written Equal Opportunities policy and Procedure. 

  

1.3.  Complaints - CAR has an established complaints procedure for use by any person who 

wishes to comment on the operations of the Charity. 

  

1.4 CAR has systems and policies in place to comply with the requirements of the Data 

Protection Acts 1998, Companies Acts, Charities Acts and other legislation relevant to 

its operation. 

Page 27



 

 

PART 2: DESIRABLE ELEMENTS 

  

2.1. That the Council is mentioned as sponsors on publicity material which it has 

financed in part or whole. 

  

2.2. That regular surveys are carried out to ascertain: 

(i) The views of users of all services provided by CAR 

  

1. CAR will investigate areas where its services may be enhanced. Reports on 

proposed changes or enhancements will be included in the Annual Report to 

the Council. 

  

  

Page 28



 

 

 

Appendix 3 

  

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

  

CITIZENS ADVICE RUSHMOOR 

AND 

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

CAR will supply RBC with quarterly statistics and data including an update on current trends.  

  

The details of quarterly enquiries will include the following information:   

1. Main issues being dealt with  

2. Ward breakdown of new advice issues and clients  

3. Type of contact (phone, in person, email etc)  

 

  

 

 

  

Page 29



 

 

Outcome  

  

Outputs & Commitment   Measurement/Supporting 

evidence provided  

1. Provide a free, 

impartial and 

independent 

service of advice, 

information, 

support and in a 

confidential 

manner to people 

in need of help 

and support who 

reside or work in 

Rushmoor.  

 

   

Providing advice and support to those 

who require it 

 

 

 

 

 

Data to include number of 

people and type of support 

required. 

   

Annual Case studies to 

demonstrate variety, depth 

and impact of support 

provided.  

 

Ward based data - including 

a breakdown of clients and 

issues from deprived areas 

specifically 

   

Value added annual 

measurement  

 

Annual advice line service 

Additional commentary:  

   

    

   

Outcome:  

  

Possible Outputs  Supporting evidence 

provided  

2. Provide 

focused 

partnership 

activity targeting 

the most 

vulnerable 

residents 

Promote services for the most 

disadvantaged in the borough 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Data to show the number of 

residents supported who: 

• live in areas of 

deprivation 

• Face language 

barriers  

• Face cost of living 

challenges 

 

Page 30



 

Provide advice to Rushmoor’s food 

banks and community pantry staff and 

volunteers and/or attend community 

outreach events 

 

Cost of living report 

Number of community 

outreach events attended 

 

Additional commentary:  

   

    

   

   

   

Outcome: 

   

Possible Outputs  Supporting evidence 

provided  

3. Improve the 

sustainability of 

services for 

clients  

 

Increase ability to self-service where 

appropriate  

   

    

Programmes delivered which 

respond to and adapts to changing 

local need and demand.  

List of training delivered and 

number of 

trustees/staff/volunteers 

attending.  

   

Annual report – including Case 

studies to demonstrate variety 

depth and impact of support 

provided.  

     

Examples of new information/ 

training delivered in response to 

expressed need.  

   

Participant feedback.  

 

Use of website in local public 

access terminals in Aldershot & 

Farnborough 

Additional commentary:  

   

   

  

Page 31



   

   

Outcome: 

  

Possible Outputs  Supporting evidence 

provided  

4. Increased 

impact 

through 

collaboration 

across the 

sector and 

with public 

sector 

partners 

including 

health 

partners.   

Community resilience strengthened 

through working with local and regional 

partners in response to issues such as 

covid and the cost-of-living crisis.  

 

Regular attendance at the Supporting 

Communities Working Group 

meetings, Council Member led 

meetings when required and other 

relevant partner meetings.  

 CA will continue to seek additional, 

external funding opportunities for the 

delivery of other outreach sessions in 

other parts of the Borough. 

   

Case studies/projects 

demonstrating the range of 

collaboration and impact.  

   

 

 

Specific forums/partnerships 

facilitated and actions  

   

  

 

Examples of joint funding bids 

submitted 

 

Level of additional external 

funding secured in addition to 

the SLA grant. 

 

Number of outreach activities 

and events attended 

Additional commentary:  

   

 Attendance at Supporting Communities Meetings. 

 CAR will also be requested to attend various Council run meetings including PPAB and 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

  

Page 32



Appendix 4  

Elected Member Observer Role at CAR 

Personal Skills and Qualities 

• Willingness and ability to understand and accept the responsibilities of an 
Observer  

• Ability to think creatively and strategically, and to exercise good, independent 
judgement. 

• Effective communication skills and willingness to participate actively in 
discussions 

• A strong personal commitment to equity, diversity and inclusion 
  

Details of appointment 

• Two-year minimum term of office, with bi-annual reelection up to a maximum of 
4 years in total  

• Up to 4x Annual in person board meetings and attendance at the AGM 
• A full induction by CAR will be provided 

 
Observer Responsibilities  

• Enhance the relationship between RBC and CAR 
• Attend and contribute to discussions at Board meetings, including on matters 

such as service delivery, risk management and governance, and finances 
• Keep abreast of changes in CAR’s operating environment 
• Contribute to the broader promotion of CAR’s objectives and reputation by 

applying your skills, expertise and knowledge. 
  

Observer Duties 

• Support CAR activities in relation to matters relating to RBC 
• Support CAR to identify and communicate how the RBC grant has benefited 

Rushmoor residents and tackled local issues 
• Provide direct feedback to the CAR Chair on the effectiveness of meetings.  

     

   

  

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Last Updated 04/12/2024 
1 

 

  
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 

 
 
The purpose of the work plan is to plan, manage and co-ordinate the ongoing activity and progress of the Council’s Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. It will be updated regularly and presented to each meeting of the Committee. It will include issues that are 
currently being actioned as well as those that will be subject to future work.   
 
The Committees Terms of Reference are as follows: 
  

• to perform all overview and scrutiny functions on behalf of the Council; 
 

• to appoint such formal sub-committees and informal task and finish groups as it considers necessary to assist it in 
discharging its functions; 
   

• to prepare and approve the overview and scrutiny work programme so as to ensure that the Committee’s time is 
effectively and efficiently utilised; 

 
• to undertake investigations into such matters relating to the Council’s functions and powers as: 
 

(1) may be referred by the Council, Committees, the Cabinet, or the Leader; or 
(2) the Committee may consider appropriate; or 
(3) have been referred to the Committee pursuant to the “call-in” procedure set out in the Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution. (These can be decisions taken by the Cabinet, a 
Cabinet Member, key decisions taken by an officer or under joint arrangements). 
 

• to monitor and review the performance of the Council and services against relevant performance indicators and adopted 
plans;  
  

P
age 35

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 N

o. 3



Last Updated 04/12/2024 
2 

 

• to review and/or scrutinise decisions proposed to be made (pre-decision scrutiny) or actions taken in connection with 
the discharge of any of the Council’s functions; 
 

• to review existing policy and strategy with a view to securing continuous improvement in the way in which the Council’s 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness;   

 
• to make reports and/or recommendations to the full Council and/or the Cabinet in connection with the discharge of any 

functions; 
 
• to review and/or scrutinise any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants;  
 
• to discuss initiatives put forward for consideration by individual members of the Committee and any relevant ‘call-for-

action’ in accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution; and  
 
• to consider petitions referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in accordance with provisions set out in the 

Petition Scheme set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.    
  

P
age 36



Last Updated 04/12/2024 
3 

 

(A) ISSUES CURRENTLY BEING PROGRESSED BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TASK AND FINISH 
GROUPS 
 
 
ISSUE (PURPOSE OF 
REVIEW) 

 
TASK AND FINISH 
GROUP  
(MEMBERSHIP 2024/25) 

 
CURRENT WORK 

 
To monitor the 
performance and 
activities of Registered 
Providers working in 
the Borough. 
 

 
Cllrs Gaynor Austin, 
Halleh Koohestani 
(Chair), S.J. Masterson, 
Bill O’Donovan and M.D. 
Smith. 

The Review and Planning meeting for the Registered Providers Group 
will be rescheduled to accommodate Member availability. A new date 
will be circulate. 

 

 
To review the Council 
Tax Support Scheme 
 

 

 
Cllrs P.J. Cullum, C.P. 
Grattan, Lisa Greenway, 
M.J. Roberts and Stuart 
Trussler (Vice-Chair) 
 

At its meeting on 16 October, members noted the information presented 
by officers on the performance of the current CTS scheme as well as the 
Council Tax and Business Rates collection data. 

Members asked to be taken through some examples of Exceptional 
Hardship payments and Discretionary Housing Payments at the next 
meeting. They also expected to be able to make a recommendation to 
Cabinet about the scheme for 25/26. 

The next meeting was scheduled for 4 December 

 
To consider further the 
economical and 
environmental impacts 
of Farnborough 
Airport on the Borough. 

 
Cllrs Craig Card, A.H. 
Crawford, P.J. Cullum, 
Halleh Koohestani 
(Chair), G.B. Lyon and 
Bill O’Donovan with Cllr 

 
Reached out to officers and will provide an update when available. 
 P

age 37



Last Updated 04/12/2024 
4 

 

 
ISSUE (PURPOSE OF 
REVIEW) 

 
TASK AND FINISH 
GROUP  
(MEMBERSHIP 2024/25) 

 
CURRENT WORK 

Jules Crossley (Policy, 
Climate & Sustainability 
Portfolio Holder) as an 
invitee as required. 

 

 

(B) OTHER ISSUES CURRENTLY BEING PROGRESSED BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

ISSUE CURRENT WORK 
Arts and Culture At its November meeting the Committee were apprised of the work being undertaken in 

conjunction with the Hampshire Cultural Trust and Arts Council England on arts and cultural 
activity on the Borough. A further meeting would be held on this item in 6-12 months. 
 

Asset Management  At its meeting in January 2024, the Committee received a presentation detailing progress on the 
Asset Management Strategy and future delivery, and a review of the portfolio and principles of 
disposal in light of the budget. 
 
A watching briefing would be maintained on progress during the 2024/25 Municipal Year. 
 

Cabinet Champions The two Cabinet Champions attended the meeting in March to provide a report on their work and 
activities during 2023/24. The work of both Champions was noted and the recommended 
priorities for 2024/25 endorsed. 

 

P
age 38



Last Updated 04/12/2024 
5 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORKFLOW – June 2024- March 2025 

DATE  ITEMS 
   
13th June 2024 
 

 Registered Providers T&F Annual Report  
Housing and Homelessness Prevention Strategy 
 

1st August 2024 
 

 SERCO 

12th September 2024  Financial Matters/CIPFA Report 
 

19th September 2024 
 

 Police and Community Safety 

24th October 2024 
 

 Rushmoor Voluntary Services - Annual SLA Report – 
Donna Bone  
 

18th November 2024  All Member Seminar to provide an update on Union Yard 
 

20th November 2024  Risk Management Briefing for CGAS Committee (open 
to all)  
 

28 November 2024  Leader Priorities – GW 
Risk Register Review – GW/RS 
 

12th December 2024 
 

 Citizens’ Advice - Annual SLA Report – Calum Stewart 
 

8th January 2025 
(Informal meeting) 

 Online meeting to discuss items to be included in a letter 
to Hampshire County Council  
 

30th January 2025 
 

 Financial Recovery Plan – Review – Invited GW & PV 
Cultural Compacts (Part 2) 
 

27th March 2025 
 

 Property – Disposals Update & Union Yard – Lettings 
 

 
Potential Future 
Items for the 
Committee in 
2024/25 
 

  
1. Highways issues (condition of roads, speeding and 

road safety issues) – HCC 
2. Housing and Homelessness Prevention Strategy 

(Session 2)  
3. Climate Change Action Plan (inc. water quality) 

(Currently going to PPAB in November for a refresh) – 
Spring 2025 

4. Community and Youth Engagement  
5. Stagecoach  
6. Champions Annual Report (x2) 
 

Page 39



Last Updated 04/12/2024 
6 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Progress Meetings 2024/25 

Membership: Cllr Leola Card, P.J. Cullum, Thomas Day, Halleh Koohestani (Chair), Nadia Martin (Vice Chair), Bill O’Donovan and 
Stuart Trussler (Vice Chair)  

Click here to view the latest Action Tracker  
(Please refresh the page when opening to ensure the latest version is available) 

 
 
DATE 
 

 ITEM 
 
NOTES 

    
02.07.2024  SERCO – scoping of 

item for 1 August  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Housing and 
Homelessness 
Prevention Strategy – 
request to Cabinet to 
review the strategy 
(June 13 meeting) 

Annual report will be finalised – a summary of the report will be presented at the 
meeting  
Areas of concern include,  

- grass cutting changes and impacts (rewilding) 
- Waste Management – what are the %’s and how can we improve? Consider 

national changes due in 2027 
- Focus on key services provided - how can we improve? / cost / effectiveness / 

performance against KPI’s 
- Renewal of contract  
- Benchmarking against other councils 

 
Important to review the data requested at the meeting prior to making a decision on a 
review of the strategy by the Cabinet. Data will provide context to those carrying out a 
review to determine if the strategy is achievable/objectives realistic. 
Cabinet Member minded to review anyway, is it better to wait until any changes have 
been made? Could offer engagement services from the Committee as part of the 
review. 

P
age 40

https://rushmoorcouncil.sharepoint.com/:x:/r/sites/democraticsupport/Shared%20Documents/Overview%20%26%20Scrutiny%20Committee/Action%20Tracker/OSC%20Action%20Tracker%20.xlsx?d=w43fd005021ba4604b3b9e4736ba1e71d&csf=1&web=1&e=q2aapq


Last Updated 04/12/2024 
7 

 

 
 
 
 
Police and Community 
Safety - September 19 
meeting  
 
Future items for 
consideration 

ACTION – follow up on request for data – AT/ZP 
ACTION – data request – how long are people in temp accommodation? How do we 
move people from temp to permanent accommodation? 
 
Produce list of asks for the Chief Inspector and Community Safety Team at next PG 
meeting. 
 
 
A list has been added to the Potential items above. 

02.09.2024  Financial Matters / 
CIPFA Report  
(12 September) 
 
 
 
 
Police and Community 
Safety 
(19 September) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Work Plan  

Simon Allsop of CIPFA will be attending online to talk through the recent CIPFA 
Report. Request for a clear understanding of the recommendations within the report. 
Establish what OSC can do to provide effective scrutiny, best practice/key lines of 
enquiry etc. What lessons have we learnt? 
Update on current position of the Council in response to the report. 
 
 
Areas to cover at the meeting included: 

- General overview of Community Safety  
- Report back from the Joint Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee  
- What’s gone well 
- Top 5 thing for GC/DL 
- CPO teams  
- Challenges 
- What can be done better 
- Cops and Coffee 
- 101/online SLAs 
- Boundary areas  

 
Members prioritised the work plan as set out above. 

P
age 41



Last Updated 04/12/2024 
8 

 

03.10.2024 
 
 
  

 Financial 
Matters/CIPFA Report 
 
 
Police and Community 
Safety  
 
RVS and CA Annual 
SLA Reports 
 
 
24 October Meeting  
 
 
 
HCC – Engagement 
Process 
 
 
 
Stagecoach 

Made some recommendations that would be included in the report to Cabinet on 15 
October. The Financial Recovery Action Plan would be reviewed in the New Year, 
pencilled in for 30 January, Leader and PV invited. 
 
ACTION – add request for Gillian Cox to attend the Community Engagement T&F to 
the Action Tracker 
 
Ensure copies of the SLA agreements are shared with Members in advance and ask 
attendees to provide an executive summary with their reports. Pencilled in for the Dec 
meeting – TBC. 
 
Risk Register – general feel, how mitigating, how managed. Look at critical ones 
(red) and any emerging risks. Establish where the “real” risks are… 
Leaders Priorities – invite the Leader to share his priorities for the future. 
 
Set up a remote meeting with all Members of the Committee to consider items for 
inclusion in a letter to HCC to start the process of engagement with them. Write to all 
Members in advance of the meeting to ensure all HCC related issues are captured for 
consideration in the discussion. 
 
ACTION - Share minutes of the last meeting at which Stagecoach were present. 

18.11.2024 
 

 RVS 
 
 
Risk Register 
 
 
Leader’s Priorities 
 
 
Union Yard  

Report to Cabinet with recommendations – 26 November ACTION - share report and 
dairy appointment with the Chair 
 
Date of training rescheduled to 25 November – ACTION - share slides in advance 
with Members 
 
Suggested to request questions in advance of the meeting for the Leader to prepare 
responses 
  
Keep a watching brief on the current situation and consider whether a separate item 
is required on Union Yard following the briefing.  

P
age 42



Last Updated 04/12/2024 
9 

 

09.01.2025 
 

   

06.03.2025 
 

   

 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	2 Citizens' Advice - Service Level Agreement - Annual Report
	RBC SLA Annual Report 2023-24.pdf
	CA SLA 24-25 - signed.pdf
	PART 1 - ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS


	3 Work Plan

